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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
 
 
To the Board of Directors 
Tampa Sports Authority 
 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of the Tampa 
Sports Authority as of and for the year ended September 30, 2013 and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Tampa Sports Authority’s basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Tampa Sports Authority as of September 30, 2013 and the changes in its 
financial position and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management’s 
Discussion and budgetary compensation information on pages 4 through 17 be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it 
to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures 
to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during 
our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance 
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on Tampa Sports Authority’s basic 
financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance as required by 
Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Florida Auditor General, is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility 
of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of 
state financial assistance is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated        
February 24, 2014, on our consideration of the Tampa Sports Authority’s internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide 
an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of 
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Tampa 
Sports Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
Report on Summarized Comparative Information  
 
We have previously audited the Tampa Sports Authority’s 2012 financial statements, and our report 
dated February 25, 2013, expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited financial statements. In 
our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended 
September 30, 2012, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from 
which it has been derived. 
 
 
 
 
Tampa, Florida 
February 24, 2014 
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The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of the financial performance     
and activity of the Tampa Sports Authority (the “Sports Authority”) is to provide an introduction 
and understanding of the financial statements of the Sports Authority for the year ended 
September 30, 2013, with selected comparisons to the prior year ended September 30, 2012. 
The information presented should be read in conjunction with the financial statements, notes 
and supplemental schedules found in this report. 
 

Introduction 
 

The Tampa Sports Authority is an independent special district that was created by Chapter 65-
2307, as superseded by Chapter 96-520, Laws of Florida, for the purpose of constructing and 
managing sports and recreational facilities in Hillsborough County. The Sports Authority’s vision 
is to provide economic development and enhance the quality of life through sports and 
recreation. The Sports Authority has no taxing powers, but rather acts as an enterprise fund 
utilizing user-fees to subsidize its operating costs. As a result, all of its major capital construction 
projects, from the original Tampa Stadium, Golf Courses, the Ice Palace, Legends Field, and 
Raymond James Stadium (the “Stadium”) have been accomplished by working closely with the 
approval and financial support of Hillsborough County (“County”) and the City of Tampa (“City”). 
 

During its first 25 years (1965-89), the funding needs of the Sports Authority from the City and 
County were minimal, and the Sports Authority operated in conjunction with local government 
units. 
 

Over the next eight years (1990-98), the Sports Authority became a player in several highly 
publicized contract negotiations with the Tampa Bay Arena, LTD (formerly known as the Tampa 
Bay Arena, LP) (formerly “Ice Palace” or St. Pete Times Forum, renamed “Tampa Bay Times 
Forum”), the New York Yankees (formerly Legends Field, renamed George M. Steinbrenner 
Field), and the Tampa Bay Buccaneers (Raymond James Stadium). In addition, the Sports 
Authority took a lead role in the design, development, and construction of George M. 
Steinbrenner Field and Raymond James Stadium. 
 

In 1995, there were two referendums that did not pass. One was a three-year, half-cent local option 
sales tax to build new schools. These referendums, which did not include the new Stadium, were 
both voted down by the public (60% against and 40% in favor). In September 1996, the 
Hillsborough County Community Investment Tax (“CIT”) referendum, which included the new 
Stadium, passed by a margin of 53% to 47%. 
 
The CIT is a half-cent local option sales tax that is projected to generate over $4.7 billion over the 
next 30 years from its inception. The first 25% of the total projected CIT collections goes to build 
new schools, the next amount goes to pay the debt service on the Stadium bonds (projected to be 
6%), and the remaining 69% is divided between the County and the three cities within Hillsborough 
County for roads, sidewalks, buildings, and public safety needs (see Attachment I).  
 

Raymond James Stadium Project 
 
In 1965, the City of Tampa donated 132 acres to the Sports Authority and backed the bonds 
issued to construct the original Tampa Stadium. In 1976, after the NFL awarded a franchise to 
Tampa, the City and County partnered to issue bonds to improve Tampa Stadium so that it was 
suitable to be operated as the home stadium for the Tampa Bay Buccaneers. At this time, 
through interlocal agreements, the City agreed to pay 1/3 and the County agreed to pay 2/3 of 
any debt or operating shortfall experienced by the Sports Authority. 
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In 1995, the Sports Authority and local City and County officials jointly determined that the cost 
to bring the old Tampa Stadium up to 1995 NFL standards would have exceeded the cost of 
constructing a new stadium. The Sports Authority offered expertise and industry experience in 
the business of building and managing the new stadium.  
 
The City and the County took a lead role in negotiating the major financial terms of the Stadium 
Agreement with the Buccaneers. Moreover, County and City staff and their attorneys actively 
participated in all negotiations with the Buccaneers, which resulted in the Stadium Agreement. 
The City and County also agreed to continue their 1/3 - 2/3 financial support. 
 
The CIT funded the initial construction cost for the Stadium. Approximately, 6% of the total 
projected collections from the CIT was used to finance the Stadium (see Attachment I). The 
remainder (94%) is being used for construction of new schools, public safety, and other 
infrastructure needs; this tax is still perceived to be the Stadium Tax, in spite of the relatively 
small percentage (6%) used to pay for the Stadium. A substantial amount of future operating 
and capital repair costs are comprised of obligations that are currently unfunded (see 
Attachment II). This was recognized during the Stadium financing negotiations and is not 
unusual for government practices, particularly when the governmental unit is the beneficiary of 
future economic impact. That is, the future increased taxes generated by a project would offset 
the future costs. 
 
As a result of a Circuit Court ruling on July 18, 2001, which was later appealed and supported 
by the Florida Supreme Court, the Sports Authority was faced with paying ad-valorem taxes on 
the Stadium. These taxes were not anticipated at the time the Stadium was constructed. As a 
result, the Sports Authority had to deplete its reserves in excess of $5,000,000 to pay the ad-
valorem taxes. Additional funding was necessary and was received from the City and County in 
accordance with the 1/3 - 2/3 interlocal agreements. To reduce the Sports Authority’s exposure 
to ad-valorem taxes in the future, the Stadium assets were allocated into two separate units. 
Unit 1 contained approximately 97% of the Stadium tangible assets as well as 100% of the 
Stadium’s real property. Unit 2 contained approximately 3% of the Stadium’s tangible assets 
representing the Sports Authority’s administrative offices, maintenance facilities and other 
general facilities. Ownership of Unit 1 was transferred to the County and ownership of Unit 2 
remained with the Sports Authority. As a result, the only taxable property left at Raymond 
James Stadium consisted of areas set aside for the Tampa Bay Buccaneers in new suites, 
office space and a warehouse area. Other areas subject to tax are the South Property used for 
parking and the Yankees minor league complex. The Buccaneers and Yankees pay their share 
of these taxes.  
 
Unless the Sports Authority receives additional funding from the CIT, or other sources, the 
Sports Authority will continue to rely on the County and City to pay shortfalls for future operating 
and capital improvement costs. In FY 2012-2013, the Sports Authority experienced an operating 
shortfall of approximately $1,498,000, (excluding leasehold interest and bond issue costs 
amortization). While the funding agreement with the Buccaneers does not cover all costs for the 
Sports Authority, it is recognized within the Tampa Bay Community that the presence of the 
Buccaneers and the premier stadium facilities offered by Raymond James Stadium brings direct 
and indirect revenues to Tampa in the form of employment, sales tax revenue, and tourist 
dollars. These revenues more than offset annual shortfall amounts contributed by the County 
and the City. 
 
 



TAMPA SPORTS AUTHORITY 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED 

 

7 
 

In accordance with the terms of the 1996 Stadium Agreement between the Sports Authority and 
the Tampa Bay Buccaneers, the Buccaneers pay an annual rent of $3,500,000 plus a $2.50 
surcharge on each admission ticket, with a maximum amount of $1,930,000 for a combined total 
of $5,430,000 annually. 
 

The Sports Authority is anticipating an operating shortfall of approximately $2,290,000 in FY 
2013-2014.  This anticipated operating shortfall when combined with approximately $924,000 in 
funds contributed from the Sports Authority’s operating reserves, means the County will pay 
approximately $911,000 of this shortfall, and the City of Tampa will pay the remaining balance 
of approximately $455,000. Additionally, during each contract year beginning February 1, the 
Sports Authority collects and pays to the Buccaneers (a) the first $2,000,000 of revenues (net of 
sales tax, surcharges and direct event costs) received from rents, concessions and parking for 
all Stadium events other than Buccaneers games, and (b) fifty percent (50%) of all such 
revenues in excess of $2,000,000. This is referred to as Buccaneer split. Fiscal year 2006-2007 
marked the first year since its inception that related revenues exceeded the $2,000,000 
threshold. During fiscal year 2006-2007 the Sports Authority recognized $16,000 of revenue 
from the Buccaneer split.  During fiscal year 2007-2008 the Buccaneer split threshold was not 
met.  The Buccaneer split was met during fiscal year 2008-2009 resulting in the Sports Authority 
recognizing $135,000 in revenue.  During fiscal year 2009-2010 the Sports Authority recognized 
$482,000 in revenue from the Buccaneer split. During fiscal year 2010-2011 the Sports 
Authority recognized $127,418 in revenue from the Buccaneer split. During fiscal year 2011-
2012 the Sports Authority recognized $756,527 in revenue from the Buccaneer split. The 
Buccaneer split threshold was met during fiscal year 2012-2013 and the Sports Authority 
recognized $690,237 in revenue from the Buccaneer split. 
 

The Sports Authority used the following revenue assumptions in arriving at a budgeted number 
for FY 2012-2013. These assumptions were based on historical data. Also, shown below are the 
actual numbers. 
 
Operating Revenue Assumptions and the Actual for FY 2012-2013: 
 

Assumptions Actual

Professional football 5,251,476$   5,062,057$   

College football 2,596,265     2,634,269     

Concerts and motorsports 4,408,666     4,634,097     

Other events 999,958        1,863,555     

Less Buccaneer split (2,558,441)    (2,799,962)    

Totals 10,697,924$ 11,394,016$ 
 

 
Actual results exceeded assumptions by $696,092 in fiscal year 2012-2013. This was due to 
increased revenue generated from other events held at the Stadium.  
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Golf Course Operations 
 
The City of Tampa entered into a management agreement with the Sports Authority in 1974 to 
operate the City-owned Babe Zaharias Golf Course. The City again entered into agreements 
with the Sports Authority in 1976 and in 1978 to manage Rogers Park and Rocky Point Golf 
Courses, respectively. The City provides capital support for selective improvements at the three 
City Golf Courses on an on-going basis. 
 
In FY 2000-2001, approximately $4,000,000 in course improvements were made to Rogers 
Park, which included a new clubhouse and new maintenance facility. A $1,900,000 renovation 
of Babe Zaharias Golf Course was completed in FY 2004-2005. These improvements have 
been and are being financed by the City, and managed by the Sports Authority.  
 
In fiscal year 2004-2005 a total of 120,511 paid rounds were played on the three golf courses, 
fiscal year 2005-2006 experienced a 6% increase in paid rounds for a total of 128,511 rounds 
played.  Paid rounds trended down through fiscal year 2009-2010.  This trend was reversed in 
fiscal year 2010-2011 with a 6% increase in paid rounds over the previous fiscal year to a total 
of 103,002 paid rounds played. In fiscal year 2011-2012, the trend continued upward with a 3% 
increase in paid rounds for a total of 106,365 paid rounds played. During fiscal year 2012-2013, 
paid rounds trended downward by 8% to 97,675 paid rounds played.  This trend was felt across 
the entire golf industry.  
 
Tampa Sports Authority Community Value 
 
The Sports Authority’s vision is to provide economic development and enhance the quality of life 
in Hillsborough County through sports and recreation. The Sports Authority can be distinguished 
from a Parks and Recreation Department, in that it provides services to the public that are paid 
for by user fees. 
 
The Sports Authority continually explores, expands and responds to sports and recreational 
needs of the community while continuing to provide current management services at Raymond 
James Stadium and the three City of Tampa owned golf courses.  
 
Financial Position Summary  
 
The Statement of Net Position presents the financial position of the Sports Authority at the end 
of the fiscal year. The statements include all assets deferral outflows, liabilities deferral inflows, 
and net position of the Sports Authority. A summarized comparison of the Sports Authority’s 
assets deferral outflows, liabilities deferral inflows, and net position at September 30, 2013 and 
2012 is as follows: 
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STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION 
 

FY 2013 FY 2012

ASSETS

Current assets $27,512,000 $41,077,000

Noncurrent assets

Capital related, net 155,114,000   166,113,000   

Noncapital 16,740,000     5,581,000       

Total assets 199,366,000   212,771,000   

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities 11,921,000     13,968,000     

Noncurrent liabilities 131,003,000   138,337,000   

Total liabilities 142,924,000   152,305,000   

NET POSITION

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 16,776,000     20,790,000     

Restricted net position 31,876,000     31,549,000     

Unrestricted net position 7,790,000       8,127,000       

56,442,000$   $60,466,000
 

 
The Sports Authority’s assets exceeded liabilities by $56.4 million at September 30, 2013 a $4.1 
million decrease from September 30, 2012. The largest portion of the Sports Authority’s net 
position for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013 relate to the restricted net position 
invested in capital assets, Raymond James Stadium and the St. Pete Times Forum, net of the 
related outstanding debt.  The second largest portion relates to funds restricted by bond 
agreements for debt service.  
 

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position is an indicator of whether 
the overall fiscal condition of the Sports Authority has improved over the prior year. Following is 
a summarized comparison of the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net 
Position for the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012: 
 

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
 

FY 2013 FY 2012

Operating revenues 11,394,000$   $12,571,000

Operating expenses (24,912,000)    25,187,000                           -                     -

Total operating loss (13,518,000)    (12,616,000)    

Net non-operating revenues 9,494,000       7,976,000       

Change in net assets (4,024,000)      (4,640,000)      

Net position at beginning of year 60,466,000     65,106,000     

Reclassifications                       -                     -

Net position at end of year 56,442,000$   $60,466,000
 

 



TAMPA SPORTS AUTHORITY 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED 

 

10 
 

Additional Information 
 
The Sports Authority’s public 2005 issue bond debt contained Debt Service Reserve Fund 
Forward Purchase Agreements (Forward Purchase Agreements) between the Sports Authority 
as Bond Issuer, U.S. Bank as Bond Trustee, and Lehman Brothers Special Financing, Inc. 
(LBSF) for guaranteed fixed rate of return of 5.162% on the reserve fund for the Local Option 
Sales Tax Refunding Revenue Bonds (2005 LOST), Series 2005 issue and 5.112% on the 
reserve fund for the Florida Sales Tax Refunding Revenue Bonds (2005 FST), Series 2005 
issue. The Debt Service Reserve Fund Forward Purchase Agreements provide for LBSF to act 
in a brokerage capacity, presenting specified investment instruments to the bond trustee who 
would then purchase the un-matured investment instruments and record ownership via book 
entry through the Depository Trust Corporation (DTC).  In accordance with this agreement, the 
purchased investment instruments were scheduled to mature every six months on January 1st 
and July 1st of each year. Matured Investment Instruments were received without incident on 
July 1, 2008 and on January 2, 2009. On September 15, 2008 it was announced that Lehman 
Brothers, including LBSF, would seek relief under Chapter 11 bankruptcy. As a result of the 
bankruptcy filing, LBSF failed to deliver new investment instruments in January 2010 and no 
further funds were invested through LBSF.  Debt Service Reserve Funds for both 2005 bond 
issues are currently invested in allowable U.S. Treasury backed investment instruments. 
 
During the fourth fiscal quarter of 2009, the Tampa Sports Authority filed Proof of Claim forms, in 
the New Jersey Federal Bankruptcy Court, against LBSF’s parent company, Lehman Brothers 
Holdings, Inc., for the loss of future guaranteed earnings under the Forward Purchase Agreements 
in the amount of $921,000 for the 2005 LOST bonds and $97,000 for the 2005 FST bonds. At the 
time of filing, the recovery estimate for the lost earnings ranged from 2% to 5% of the total claim 
amount submitted.  In the 2012 fiscal year, the recovery estimate was increased to 40% to 60% of 
the total claim.  It is not known as to an exact amount or percentage that may be recovered, 
however it is possible that more funds will be recovered in the future. In the 2012 fiscal year, 
$242,000 of lost earnings were received from Lehman Brothers Holding, Inc. In the 2013 fiscal 
year, an additional $96,000 of lost earnings were received.  A total of $338,000 of lost earnings 
have been received from Lehman Brothers Holding, Inc. as of September 30, 2013.  
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ATTACHMENT I 
 

HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY COMMUNITY  
INVESTMENT TAX 
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Hillsborough County Community Investment Tax 
30 Year Local Option - Sales Tax 

(Amount in millions) 
 

Public safety, roads

Infrastructure needs

Hillsborough County 2,317$      

City of Tampa 824           

Plant City 77             

Temple Terrace 57             

3,275       69%

Hillsborough County Schools 1,189       25%

Raymond James Stadium 292          6%

Total projected collections from CIT 4,756$     100%

 
 
 

69%

25%

6%

Projected Community Investment 
Tax

Safety & Roads

Schools

RJS
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ATTACHMENT II 
 

PROJECTED CAPITAL COSTS 
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YEAR YEAR YEAR YEAR

2013 to 2017 2018 to 2022 2023 to 2027 2028 TOTAL

Projected Capital Costs * 22,187,051$ 28,191,191$ 7,088,415$   781,000$      58,247,657$ 

Funds Pledged From CIT (3,750,000)    (3,750,000)    (500,000)       -                    (8,000,000)    

Restricted Revenue - Interest 

    and Earnings on Bond Funds (836,000)       (920,000)       (1,000,000)    (200,000)       (2,956,000)    

Funds Carried Forward (1,681,052)    15,919,999   39,441,190   45,029,605   (1,681,052)    

Unfunded Future Capital Costs 15,919,999$ 39,441,190$ 45,029,605$ 45,610,605$ 45,610,605$ 

*  2.75% annual inflation factor has been considered for years 2013 through 2028  
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PROJECTED CAPITAL COSTS - RAYMOND JAMES STADIUM 
 

YEAR YEAR YEAR YEAR

SYSTEM / ITEM 2013 to 2017 2018 to 2022 2023 to 2027 2028 TOTAL

CAPITAL PROJECTS

Acoustical Ceilings 213,403$         232,191$         -$                -$                445,594$         

Architectural Precast Caulking 252,000          -                     -                  -                  252,000          

Building Expansion Joints -                     2,000,000        -                  -                  2,000,000        

Carpet - Club, Lower Galleries 480,500          784,000          87,000         -                  1,351,500        

Carpet - Locker Rooms 129,000          -                     80,000         -                  209,000          

Carpet - Press Box 89,000            -                     125,355       -                  214,355          

Carpet - Suites & Suite Hallways 597,200          -                     197,500       70,000         864,700          

Club Furnishings 799,000          -                     -                  -                  799,000          

Computers 168,000          164,000          157,000       33,000         522,000          

Concourse Coating 134,000          117,000          129,000       -                  380,000          

Concourse Furnishings 8,000              -                     -                  -                  8,000              

Concrete 128,000          110,000          -                  -                  238,000          

EIFS/Stucco 128,000          -                     -                  -                  128,000          

Elevators 93,000            -                     -                  -                  93,000            

Escalators 20,000            -                     -                  -                  20,000            

Field Wall Pads -                     -                     25,000         -                  25,000            

Graphics and Signage 18,000            301,000          -                  -                  319,000          

Light Tower Painting 585,267          -                     -                  -                  585,267          

Main Stadium Playing Field Replacement -                     516,000          -                  -                  516,000          

Maintenance Equipment 231,300          152,000          167,000       35,000         585,300          

Masonry 25,000            38,000            -                  -                  63,000            

Overhead Coiling Doors 70,000            71,000            78,000         17,000         236,000          

Retractable Seats 13,000            15,000            16,000         -                  44,000            

Roofing at General Locations (Including Clubs) -                     1,984,000        -                  -                  1,984,000        

Scoreboards -                     389,000          -                  -                  389,000          

Sound Reinforcement System 1,005,600        -                     -                  -                  1,005,600        

Stadium Rails 60,000            1,096,000        -                  -                  1,156,000        

Stadium Seating 1,265,827        5,606,000        190,000       40,000         7,101,827        
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PROJECTED CAPITAL COSTS - RAYMOND JAMES STADIUM 
 

YEAR YEAR YEAR YEAR

SYSTEM / ITEM 2013 to 2017 2018 to 2022 2023 to 2027 2028 TOTAL

CAPITAL PROJECTS - Continued

Structural Precast 37,000            38,000            -                  -                  75,000            

Suite Furnishings 2,306,000        -                     -                  -                  2,306,000        

Suite Ice Makers 225,900          275,000          -                  -                  500,900          

Suite Refrigerators 225,900          234,000          -                  -                  459,900          

Telephones 71,124            168,000          55,000         -                  294,124          

Television Cabling 100,000          -                     -                  -                  100,000          

Videoboards 7,550,000        171,000          241,000       -                  7,962,000        

Wall Coverings 844,800          -                     -                  -                  844,800          

Water Repellent 260,000          -                     329,000       -                  589,000          

Yankee Pedestrian Bridge -                     184,000          200,560       -                  384,560          

Subtotal 18,133,821      14,645,191      2,077,415     195,000       35,051,427      

ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT

Access Control -                     244,000          -                  -                  244,000          

Building Wire Above/Below Grade 22,100            22,000            25,000         -                  69,100            

CCTV System 162,000          190,000          209,000       -                  561,000          

Electric Metering System 20,000            -                     -                  -                  20,000            

Fire Alarm System 215,130          -                     -                  -                  215,130          

Interior Lighting Fixtures -                     173,000          -                  -                  173,000          

Lightning Protection System -                     511,000          -                  -                  511,000          

Lighting Occupancy Sensors -                     66,000            -                  -                  66,000            

Microlite Electrical System -                     71,000            -                  -                  71,000            

Sports Lighting Fixtures -                     389,000          -                  -                  389,000          

Television Distribution -                     132,000          -                  -                  132,000          

Televisions/Sets -                     4,243,000        -                  -                  4,243,000        

Subtotal 419,230          6,041,000        234,000       -                  6,694,230        



TAMPA SPORTS AUTHORITY 
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PROJECTED CAPITAL COSTS - RAYMOND JAMES STADIUM 
 

YEAR YEAR YEAR YEAR

SYSTEM / ITEM 2013 to 2017 2018 to 2022 2023 to 2027 2028 TOTAL

HVAC

Air Compressors -                     11,000            -                  -                  11,000            

Central Station Air Handlers -                     2,119,000        -                  -                  2,119,000        

Centrifugal Chillers (2500 Tons) -                     1,943,000        -                  -                  1,943,000        

Cooling Towers Piping System -                     16,000            37,000         -                  53,000            

Fan Coil Units 214,000          738,000          421,000       69,000         1,442,000        

Insulation 70,000            72,000            78,000         17,000         237,000          

Test & Balance 60,000            70,000            78,000         -                  208,000          

Subtotal 344,000          4,969,000        614,000       86,000         6,013,000        

PLUMBING EQUIPMENT

Domestic Hot Water -                     -                     253,000       -                  253,000          

Pumps (Booster) 100,000          -                     -                  -                  100,000          

Main HW Boiler 105,000          -                     309,000       -                  414,000          

Subtotal 205,000          -                     562,000       -                  767,000          

SITE

Landscaping/Irrigation -                     -                     24,000         -                  24,000            

Paving (Asphalt Parking at Stadium) -                     486,000          605,000       -                  1,091,000        

Paving (North Parking Drive Lanes) 157,000          -                     206,000       -                  363,000          

Paving (South Parking Drive Lanes) 211,000          -                     277,000       -                  488,000          

Tree Replacement 62,000            -                     84,000         -                  146,000          

Under Drains/Pump Stations (2) 25,000            -                     34,000         -                  59,000            

Water Distribution 59,000            -                     71,000         -                  130,000          

Subtotal 514,000          486,000          1,301,000     -                  2,301,000        

Suite and Club Renovation Project Administration 1,371,000        -                     -                  -                  1,371,000        

CONTINGENCY PROJECTS 1,200,000        2,050,000        2,300,000     500,000       6,050,000        

TOTAL 22,187,051$    28,191,191$    7,088,415$   781,000$      58,247,657$    
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Tampa Sports Authority 
 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
 

September 30, 2013 
(With comparative total for 2012) 

 

2013 2012

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents (note C) 22,474,536$   34,790,477$   

Accounts receivable 4,324,538       5,554,105       

Prepaid expenses and deposits 712,559          732,150          

Total current assets 27,511,633     41,076,732     

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Investments (note C) 314,939          323,249          

Practice facility funds receivable (note D) 11,544,252     -                     

Capital assets, net of depreciation (note E) 5,685,045       5,644,015       

Unamortized leasehold interest (note F) 149,428,614   160,468,692   

Unamortized portion of bond issuance costs 1,243,580       1,347,455       

Deferred costs of advance refunding (note Q) 3,637,965       3,910,813       

Total non-current assets 171,854,395   171,694,224   

TOTAL ASSETS 199,366,028   212,770,956   

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long-term debt due within one year (note G) 7,334,920       6,984,920       

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,074,338       4,404,538       

Accrued interest payable 2,124,570       2,224,701       

Deferred revenue 387,453          353,832          

Total current liabilities 11,921,281     13,967,991     

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Bonds and loans payable, net (note G) 131,002,497   138,337,417   

TOTAL LIABILITIES 142,923,778   152,305,408   

Invested in capital assets and unamortized

leasehold interest, net of related debt 16,776,243     20,790,370     

Restricted for capital projects (note C) 13,584,289     13,399,945     

Restricted for debt service (note C) 17,978,512     17,827,983     

Restricted for excess surcharge fund (notes C and M) 313,385          320,405          

Unrestricted 7,789,821       8,126,845       

TOTAL NET POSITION 56,442,250$   60,465,548$   

                 ASSETS

               LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

NET POSITION

 



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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Tampa Sports Authority 
 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
 

For the year ended September 30, 2013 
(With comparative total for 2012) 

 

2013 2012

Operating revenues

Charges for services 11,394,016$   12,571,403$   

Total operating revenues 11,394,016     12,571,403     

Operating expenses

   Facility operations 9,973,513       10,428,142     

   Other operations 27,503            30,351            

General and administrative 2,432,884       2,168,501       

   Real estate taxes 577,443          545,773          

Depreciation and amortization 267,802          273,705          

   Amortization of leasehold interest 11,529,441     11,637,139     

Amortization of bond issue costs 103,875          103,875          

Total operating expenses 24,912,461     25,187,486     

Total operating loss (13,518,445)   (12,616,083)   

Non-operating revenues (expenses)

Investment income 64,924            275,409          

Grants and contributions 14,927,432     14,448,179     

Interest expense and amortization of bond

premiums, discounts and deferred costs (6,994,153)     (7,325,335)     

Loss on disposal of assets (1,057)            (420)               

Total non-operating revenues 7,997,146       7,397,833       

Change in net position before capital grants and

other contributions (5,521,299)     (5,218,250)     

Capital grants and other contributions 1,498,001       578,146          

Change in net position (4,023,298)     (4,640,104)     

Net position at beginning of year 60,465,548     65,105,652     

Net position at end of year 56,442,250$   60,465,548$   
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Tampa Sports Authority 
 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
 

For the year ended September 30, 2013 
(With comparative total for 2012) 

 

2013 2012

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash received from customers 12,657,204$   11,017,642$   

Cash payments to vendors for goods and services (12,300,834)   (7,985,876)     

Cash payments to employees for services (3,021,118)     (3,026,276)     

Net cash (used) provided by operating activities (2,664,748)     5,490              

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities

   Operating grants received 14,927,432     14,448,179     

Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities 14,927,432     14,448,179     

Cash flows from capital and related financing

activities

Acquisition of capital assets (309,889)        (150,796)        

Additions to leasehold interest (535,878)        (776,228)        

Loss on disposal of leasehold interest 46,515            78,686            

Principal payments on debt (6,715,000)     (6,400,000)     

Interest payments on debt (7,364,204)     (7,693,985)     

Costs of bond refunding 272,848          272,847          

Capital grants and contributions received 1,498,001       578,146          

Net cash used by capital and related financing 

activities (13,107,607)   (14,091,330)   

Cash flows from investing activities

Investment income 64,924            275,409          

Transfer of practice facility funds (11,544,252)   -                     

Net proceeds from sales of investments 8,310              160,422          

Net cash provided by investing activities (11,471,018)   435,831          

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (12,315,941)   798,170          

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 34,790,477     33,992,307     

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 22,474,536$   34,790,477$   

 



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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Tampa Sports Authority 
 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - CONTINUED 
 

For the year ended September 30, 2013 
(With comparative total for 2012) 

 

2013 2012

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash

used by operating activities

Operating loss (13,518,445)$ (12,616,083)$ 

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net

cash (used) provided by operating activities

Depreciation 267,802          273,705          

Amortization of related bond costs 103,875          103,875          

Amortization of leasehold interest 11,529,441     11,637,139     

Changes in assets and liabilities

(Increase) decrease in

Accounts receivable 1,229,567       (1,379,605)     

Prepaid expenses and deposits 19,591            (330,278)        

Increase (decrease) in

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (2,330,200)     2,490,893       

Deferred revenue 33,621            (174,156)        

     Total adjustments 10,853,697     12,621,573     

Net cash (used) provided by operating activities (2,664,748)$   5,490$            
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NOTE A - ORGANIZATION AND REPORTING ENTITY 
 
1. Reporting Entity 
 

The Tampa Sports Authority (the "Sports Authority") was created by Chapter 65-2307, as 
superseded by Chapter 96-520, Laws of Florida, for the purpose of planning, developing, 
promoting, and maintaining a comprehensive complex of sports and recreation facilities for 
the use and enjoyment of the citizens of Tampa and Hillsborough County, Florida. The 
Sports Authority has been determined to be an Independent Special District as described in 
Section 189.403, Florida Statutes. 
 

The Sports Authority has operated Raymond James Stadium since 1998, along with the 
adjacent properties located on a 134-acre site, approximately 3.5 miles northwest of 
Tampa’s downtown business district. Raymond James Stadium is a multi-purpose facility 
designed primarily for football. The Stadium has a 66,071 spectator seating capacity 
expandable to 75,000 for special events. A National Football League team, the Tampa Bay 
Buccaneers, and the University of South Florida’s football team, the South Florida Bulls, use 
Raymond James Stadium as their home field (see note E). 
 

During October 1996, the Sports Authority completed the building of an arena facility 
(“Arena project”) currently known as the Tampa Bay Times Forum and formerly known as 
the St. Pete Times Forum or the Ice Palace, in the downtown channel district of Tampa. The 
Tampa Bay Times Forum, a multi-purpose arena with seating capacity of approximately 
20,000, was developed and operated by Tampa Bay Arena, L.P. The Tampa Bay Times 
Forum is principally used as a venue for home games of the Tampa Bay Lightning, a 
franchisee of the National Hockey League, and of the Tampa Bay Storm, a franchisee of the 
Arena Football League (see note E). 
 

2. Raymond James Stadium Ownership 
 

In order to avoid the inclusion of Raymond James Stadium (the “Stadium Property”)          
and most of the tangible personal property assets contained within it in the ad valorem      
tax rolls of Hillsborough County (the “County”) as prepared by the Property Appraiser, and  
to satisfy the proviso that a county owned facility is not subject to such taxation, on 
December 22, 2003, the Hillsborough County Board of County Commissioners and the 
Sports Authority further amended an interlocal agreement dated June 1, 1997, previously 
amended on August 1, 2001, to, in effect, allow the County ownership rights of the Stadium 
Property. 
 

In essence, approximately 98% of the total square footage of the Stadium Property, together 
with the parking lots located on the east, west and north sides of the said property, and 
tangible personal property including: concession equipment; club suites, club and press box 
furnishings; cabinets-concierge; concession freezers; field wall pads; scoreboards and 
scoreboard additions; sound systems, communication systems, video boards and related 
computer software and hardware; but excluding all furniture, fixtures and equipment located 
in the Sports Authority’s executive offices at the Stadium Property; all maintenance 
equipment located in the maintenance facility at the Stadium Property; and all motor 
vehicles assigned to the Sports Authority’s personnel, have been transferred to the County.  
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NOTE A - ORGANIZATION AND REPORTING ENTITY – Continued 
 
The parties signed a Bill of Sale dated December 22, 2003 and a Quit Claim Deed recorded 
on December 30, 2003. The transfer of approximately 98% of the real property took effect 
through a Declaration of Condominium and the formation of RJS Condominium Association, 
Inc. The commercial condominium is known as RJS Stadium, a Commercial Condominium 
(herein referred to as RJS Stadium Condominium), consists of seven units. 
 
The County received its ownership by acquiring Unit 1, which contains approximately 98% 
of the total square footage of the Stadium Property, and the parking lots located to its east, 
west and north. The ownership of tangible personal property assets described in the 
previous paragraph took place through the Bill of Sale. The Quit Claim Deed contains 
recitals of certain lease agreements and other matters related to transfer of assets and the 
operation of the Stadium Property. 
 
Pursuant to the related lease agreement, the County leases the Stadium Property to the 
Sports Authority for a term ending on January 31, 2028. The Sports Authority retains 
ownership of Units 2 through 7 of RJS Stadium Condominium. The conveyance of the 
Stadium Property to the County and lease-back to the Sports Authority will not have a 
material effect on the Sports Authority’s operation of Raymond James Stadium, the Sports 
Authority’s internal operations, or the rights and obligations of either the Sports Authority or 
the Buccaneers Stadium Limited Partnership under their respective agreements, nor would 
it alter in any way the Sports Authority’s receipt of the pledged revenues, as defined, as to 
each series of related outstanding bonds, its receipt of other revenues to be used to pay 
costs of operating the Stadium Property or for other purposes apart from the payment of 
debt service on the bonds, or its application of those other revenues to the payment of costs 
of operating the Stadium Property. 
 
In acquiring the Stadium Property, the County did not assume responsibility for any of the 
outstanding bond issues (note F), which remain an obligation of the Sports Authority, with all 
covenants remaining intact. However, Hillsborough County issued two advanced refunding 
bonds in November 2006, whereby the County assumes the obligation for these bond 
issuances. 
 
3. Tampa Bay Times Forum Ownership 
 
In order to avoid the inclusion of the Tampa Bay Times Forum (the “Forum”) in the ad-
valorem tax rolls of the County, as prepared by the Property Appraiser, and to satisfy the 
provision that a County owned facility is not subject to such taxation, the Hillsborough Board 
of County Commissioners and the Sports Authority entered into an interlocal agreement 
dated December 30, 2004 to, in effect, allow the County ownership rights of the Forum, until 
then owned by the Sports Authority. In essence, 100% of the total square footage of the 
Forum and the underlying land was transferred to the County. 
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NOTE A - ORGANIZATION AND REPORTING ENTITY – Continued 
 
The parties signed a Bill of Sale dated December 30, 2004 and a Quit Claim Deed recorded 
on December 30, 2004. The transfer of the Forum took effect through a Title Transfer 
Agreement dated December 31, 2004. 
 
Pursuant to a lease agreement entered into on December 30, 2004, the County leases the 
Forum to the Sports Authority for a term ending on June 30, 2027. The Sports Authority 
subleased the Forum to the Tampa Bay Arena, LTD (formerly known as the Tampa Bay 
Arena, LLP) on December 30, 2004 for a term expiring on June 30, 2027. The conveyance 
of the Forum to the County and lease-back to the Sports Authority will not have a material 
effect on the Sports Authority’s operations of the Forum, the Sports Authority’s internal 
operations, or the rights and obligations of either the Sports Authority or the Tampa Bay 
Arena, LTD under their respective agreements, nor would it alter in any way the Sports 
Authority’s receipt of pledged revenues, as defined, as to each series of related outstanding 
bonds, or its application of those revenues to the payment of debt service on the bonds. 
 
In acquiring the Forum, the County did not assume responsibility for any of the outstanding 
bond issues (note F), which remain an obligation of the Sports Authority.  
 
4. Management Activities 
 
Under a Management Agreement with the City of Tampa (the “City”), the Sports Authority 
manages three golf courses owned by the City: Babe Zaharias Golf Course, Rocky Point 
Golf Course, and Rogers Park Golf Course (collectively called herein, “Golf Course 
Operations”).  

 
NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 
1. Basis of Presentation 
 
The Sports Authority is considered to be a self-supporting enterprise similar to a commercial 
entity organized for profit. Accordingly, these financial statements are prepared on the 
accrual basis of accounting similar to that prescribed for proprietary operations of state and 
local governments. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the 
period in which they are earned and measurable, and expenses are recognized in the period 
in which the related liability is incurred. 

 
2. Basis of Accounting 
 
The Sports Authority’s financial statements are presented in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States. The Sports Authority applies all 
applicable pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards board issued on or 
before November 30, 1989, and all applicable pronouncements required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 
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NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued 
 
The Sports Authority has elected not to apply accounting standards issued after November 
30, 1989 by the Financial Accounting Standards Board. The Sports Authority’s significant 
financial and accounting policies utilized in formulating these financial statements follow. 
 

3. Fund Accounting 
 

The operations of the Sports Authority are recorded in a proprietary fund. Proprietary funds 
are used to account for activities that are similar to those often found in the private sector. All 
Sports Authority financial transactions are grouped in one major fund type, an enterprise 
fund. Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed primarily through 
user charges, or where the governing body has concluded that the determination of net 
income is appropriate. 
 

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the flow of economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. With this measurement focus, all assets and 
liabilities associated with the operation of the fund are included on the statement of net 
assets. Fund equity is segregated into its net assets components. Revenues are recorded 
when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. Proprietary 
funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating 
revenues result from providing goods and services in connection with a proprietary fund’s 
principal ongoing operations; they usually come from exchange or exchange-like 
transactions. 
 

All other revenues are nonoperating. Operating expenses can be tied specifically to the 
production of the goods and services, such as materials and labor and direct overhead. 
Other expenses are nonoperating. 

 

4. Capital and Other Grants 
 

Grants, defined as contributions from governmental entities which are restricted by the 
grantor for capital acquisitions or construction, are reported as operating grants and 
contributions or as capital grants and contributions. 
 
5. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash consists of checking, money market, and savings accounts, collectively designated as 
demand deposits. Cash deposits are carried at cost. The Sports Authority considers all 
highly liquid debt instruments (including restricted assets) with original maturities of three 
months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are recorded at amortized cost, 
which approximates market value. 
 
6. Accounts Receivable 
 
The Sports Authority records accounts receivable at the estimated net realizable value. 
Accordingly, accounts receivable at September 30, 2013 are shown net of allowances for 
doubtful accounts. The Sports Authority has set their allowance for doubtful accounts at zero 
as of September 30, 2013. 
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NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued 
 
7. Investments 
 
The Sports Authority invests in a high quality bond fund and local government surplus trust 
funds. The Sports Authority follows the guidelines of GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools. 
Investments that mature within one year of acquisition are stated at cost or amortized cost. 
Investments with the remaining maturity of more than one year at the time of the purchase 
are carried at fair value. The fair value of investments has been determined through the 
depositories’ pricing service as established by general industry practices. Any realized gains 
and losses in fair value are reported in the operations of the current period. 

 
8. Property and Equipment 
 
Property and equipment is carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is 
provided over the estimated useful lives (20 to 40 years for land improvements and buildings 
and two to ten years for furniture, fixtures and equipment) utilizing the straight-line method. 
Acquisitions of $750 or more are capitalized and expenditures for repairs and maintenance 
are expensed in the period incurred. 
 
Expenditures for renewals and improvements that significantly add to productive capacity or 
extend the useful life of the asset are capitalized. 

 
Donated assets are valued at their estimated fair value on the date of donation. 

 
9. Amortization 
 
Bond issue costs, bond premiums, bond discounts, and leasehold rights are generally being 
amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the related debt or period of benefit in the 
case of leasehold rights. 
 

 

10. Pension Disclosure 
 

The Sports Authority utilizes GASB Statement No.27, Accounting for Pensions by State and 
Local Governmental Employers, for the measurement, recognition and display of pension 
expense. 
 

11. Compensated Absences 
 

Full time employees earn from 10 to 20 vacation days a year, depending upon their length of 
employment, and 8 to 12 sick days a year, depending upon the plan option that the 
employee falls under. Annual leave (vacation days) is accrued up to 320 hours during an 
employee’s term of active employment. Sick leave accrual is based on Hillsborough 
County’s Civil Service Rules. 
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NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued 
 
The compensated absences liability is calculated based on the pay or salary rates in effect 
at the date of the Statement of Net Assets. Additionally, accruals have been made for salary-
related payments associated with the payment of compensated absences, using the rates in 
effect at the date of the Statement of Net Assets. 
 

12. Use of Estimates 
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of contributions and expenses during the reporting period. These estimates are 
based on management’s knowledge and experience. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

 

13. Recent Accounting Pronouncements 
 

GASB Statement 60, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession 
Arrangements, was issued in November 2010 and is effective for the Sports Authority in fiscal 
year 2013. The statement provides guidance on whether the transferor or operator should 
report the capital asset in its financial statements, when to recognize up-front payments from an 
operator as revenue, and how to record any obligations of the transferor to the operator, and 
establishes recognition, measurement, and disclosure requirements for service concession 
arrangements. This statement is not  applicable to the Sports Authority. Therefore, the adoption 
of the statement had no impact on its financial statements. 
 
GASB Statement 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus, was issued in November 2010 
and is effective for the Sports Authority in fiscal year 2013. This statement improves the 
information presented about the financial reporting entity. The adoption of this statement had 
no impact on the Sports Authority’s financial statements. 
 

GASB Statement 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows 
of Resources, and Net Position, was issued in June 2011 and is effective for the Sports 
Authority in fiscal year 2013. This statement provides a new net position format to report all 
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and not 
position. The Sports Authority implemented this statement in fiscal year 2013. 

 
GASB Statement 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, was issued in March 
2012 and is effective for the Sports Authority in fiscal year 2014. This statement reclassifies 
certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities, as deferred outflows of 
resources or deferred inflows of resources to ensure consistency in financial reporting. The 
Sports Authority does not expect the adoption of this statement to have a material impact on its 
financial statements. 
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NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued 
 
GASB Statement 66, Technical Corrections – 2012 – an  Amendment of GASB Statements No. 
10 and No. 62, was issued in March 2012 and will be effective for the Sports Authority in fiscal 
year 2014. This statement is for the purpose of improving accounting and financial reporting by 
resolving conflicting guidance that resulted from the issuance of two pronouncements, 
Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, and No. 
62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 
30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. The Authority does not expect the adoption of 
GASB No. 66 to have an impact on its financial statements. 
 
GASB Statement 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans – an Amendment of GASB 
Statement No. 25, was issued in June 2012, and will be effective for the Sports Authority in 
fiscal year 2014. The objective of this statement is to improve financial reporting by state and 
local governmental pension plans. The  Sports Authority has not yet determined the effect that 
the adoption of this statement may have on its financial statements. 
 
GASB Statement 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions – an Amendment of 
GASB Statement No. 27, was issued in June 2012, and will be effective for the Sports Authority 
in the fiscal year 2015. The statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for 
pensions provided to governmental employees through pension plans that are administered by 
trusts. The Sports Authority participates in the Florida Retirement System that is administered 
by the State of Florida. Under this standard, the Sports Authority will be required to report a net 
pension liability, pension expense, and pension-related deferred inflows and outflows of 
resources based on its proportionate share of the collective amounts for all the governments in 
the Florida Retirement System plan. The Sports Authority has not yet determined the impact on 
its financial statements. 
 
GASB Statement 69, Government Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations, 
was issued in January 2013, and will be effective for the Sports Authority in fiscal year 2015. 
This statement provides specific accounting and financial reporting guidance for combinations 
and disposals in the government environment. The Sports Authority does not anticipate any 
mergers, acquisitions, and transfers of operations in the future. Thus, the statement is not 
applicable. 
 
GASB Statement 70, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial 
Guarantees, was issued in April 2013, and will be effective for the Sports Authority in fiscal year 
2014. The objective of this statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state 
and local governments that extend and receive nonexchange financial guarantees. A 
government that extends a nonexchange financial guarantee is required to recognize a  liability 
if is more likely than that the government will be required to make a payment on the guarantee; 
a government that has issued an obligation guarantee in a nonexchange transaction is required 
to recognized revenue to the extent of the reduction in its guaranteed liabilities. The statement 
will enhance comparability of financial statements among governments and specify the 
information to be disclosed by governments that extend nonexchange financial guarantees. 
The  Sports Authority has not yet determined the effect that the adoption of this statement may 
have on its financial statements. 
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NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued 
 
GASB Statement 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the 
Measurement Date – an Amendment of GASB Statement 68, was issued November 2013 and 
is required to be applied simultaneously with the provisions of GASB Statement 68. The 
objective of this statement is to address an issue regarding application of the transition 
provisions of Statement No. 68, Accounting And Financial Reporting for Pensions. The issue 
relates to amounts associated with contributions, if any, made by a state or local government 
employer or non-employer contributing entity to a defined benefit pension plan after 
measurement date of the government’s beginning net pension liability. 
 
14. Tax-exempt Status 
 

The Sports Authority is exempt from federal and state income taxes under provisions of the 
U.S. Internal Revenue Code and Florida Income Tax Code, respectively. Accordingly, there 
is no provision for income taxes in the financial statements. 
 
15. Restricted Funds 

 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Authority’s 
policy to use restricted resources first and then unrestricted resources when they are 
needed. 

 

NOTE C - CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 

1. Deposits 
 

The Sports Authority deposits cash in qualified public depositories. The deposits are fully 
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the FDIC) and are secured by the 
multiple financial institution collateral pool established under Chapter 280, Florida Statutes. 
In accordance with these statutes, qualified public depositories are required to pledge 
eligible collateral in varying percentages. Any losses to public depositors are covered by 
applicable deposit insurance, by the sale of pledged securities, and if necessary, by 
assessments against other qualified public depositories. 
 
The bank balances of the Sports Authority deposits were $22,789,475, and the total   
carrying amounts of its deposits (unrestricted and restricted) were $23,083,702 at 
September 30, 2013. 
 
The difference between the Sports Authority’s book amount and bank amount is due to 
outstanding checks and transfers, deposits in transit in its demand accounts, and 
adjustments to market value for funds maintained in the Florida State Board of 
Administration Local Government Surplus Trust Funds Investment Pool. 
 
 
 
 



Tampa Sports Authority 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 
 

  September 30, 2013 
 

 32 

NOTE C - CASH AND INVESTMENTS – Continued 
 
$155,432 of the September 30, 2013 Sports Authority’s bank balance was collateralized by 
the State of Florida collateral pool, which is a multiple financial institution pool with the ability 
to assess its members for collateral shortfalls if any of its member institutions fail. Required 
collateral is defined under Chapter 280 of the Florida Statutes, Security for Public Deposits. 
 
Restricted assets held by the Sports Authority totaled $31,876,186 and represent amounts 
that are restricted through debt covenants and agreements for the payment of $13,584,289 
in capital project purchases, $17,978,512 for debt service payments and $313,385 for 
excess surcharge collections. 
 
2. Cash on Hand 
 
The Sports Authority had cash on hand in its petty cash funds totaling approximately $200 at 
September 30, 2013. 

 

3. Investments 
 
Florida Statute 218.415 and the Sports Authority’s investment policy authorize the Sports 
Authority to invest surplus funds in the following: 
 

a. The Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund, an investment pool, under the 
sponsorship of the Florida State Board of Administration. 
 

b. Negotiable direct obligations of, or obligations where the principal and interest are 
unconditionally guaranteed by the United States Government. 

 

c. Interest bearing time deposits or savings accounts in qualified public depositories, as 
defined in Florida Statute 280.02. 

 

d. Obligations of the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation. 
 

e. Obligations of the Federal National Mortgage Association. 
 

f. Securities of, or other interest in open-end or closed-end management type          
investment company or investment trust registered under the Investment Company 
Act of 1940, 15 U.S.C. ss.80a-1 et seq, as amended from time to time, provided the 
portfolio of such investment company or trust fund is limited to obligations of the 
United States Government or any agency or instrumentality thereof and to 
repurchase agreements fully collateralized by such United States Government 
obligations, and provided such an entity takes delivery of such collateral, either 
directly or through an authorized custodian. 
 

g. Prime commercial paper with the highest credit quality rating from a nationally 
recognized agency. 

 

h. Tax exempt obligations rated “AA” or higher and issued by state and local 
governments. 
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NOTE C - CASH AND INVESTMENTS – Continued 
 
There were no violations to this policy during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013.  
 
The Sports Authority’s investment activity during the year ended September 30, 2013 is 
summarized as follows: 
 
The Sports Authority invests funds throughout the year with the Local Government Surplus 
Funds Trust Fund Investment Pool (the “LGIP”) and the Fund B Surplus Funds Trust Fund 
(the “Fund B”), which are investment pools administered by the Florida State Board of 
Administration (“FSBA”), under the regulatory oversight of the State of Florida. There is a 
risk of loss of value in the investments if there are changes in the underlying indexed base. 
The FSBA LGIP met the criteria to be a “2a-7Like” pool, as defined in GASB No. 31 at 
September 30, 2013. Therefore, the investment was valued at share value, which 
approximates fair value.  The FSBA Fund B is accounted for using a fluctuating net asset 
value pool, therefore, the account value is adjusted by a fair value factor (1.132623 at 
September 30, 2013, as determined by FSBA) to determine the fair value of the investment 
at the reporting date.  The total fair market value of investments held in the LPIG and Fund B 
at September 30, 2013, was $1 and $155,431, respectively, and is included in cash and 
cash equivalents and investments. 

 
The LGIP is rated by Standard and Poors and the current rating is AAAm. Fund B is not 
rated by any nationally recognized statistical rating agency.  The weighted day to maturity of 
the LGIP at September 30, 2013 was 44 days and the weighted average life of the Fund B at 
September 30, 2013 was 4.04 years. The financial statements for the LGIP and Fund B may 
be obtained from the FSBA website. 

 

The fair market value of investments consisted of the following at September 30, 2013: 
 

Cash 310,381$          

Florida Local Government Surplus

Funds Trust Fund (managed by State Board of Administration) 4,558                

314,939$          
 

 

NOTE D - PRACTICE FACILITY FUNDS RECEIVABLE 
 

Pursuant to the terms of the Interlocal Agreement for distribution of Community Investment 
Tax Revenue dated July 17, 1996, disbursements were made to the Authority in the amount 
of $12 million for purposes related to the possible purchase or construction of a football 
practice facility. Over the years funds have been used for costs associated with the facility. 
The Hillsborough County Board of County Commissions voted to have the remaining funds 
($11,663,542) transferred back to Hillsborough County and three other municipalities. As of 
September 30, 2013, $11,554,252 has been transferred and the remaining $109,290 will be 
transferred once the funds become fully liquid. Although these funds have been disbursed 
as mentioned, the Sports Authority maintains these amounts as a non-current restricted 
asset due to the terms outlined in the Interlocal Agreement. 
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NOTE E - CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Property and equipment at September 30, 2013 is summarized as follows: 

 

Balance 

September 30, 

2012 Additions Dispositions

Balance 

September 

30,2013

Capital assets not being depreciated

Land 20,000$          -$              -$               20,000$           

Construction in progress 336,585          -               -                 336,585           

Total capital assets not

depreciated 356,585          -               -                 356,585           

Capital assets being depreciated

Buildings and improvements 6,327,196       -               -                 6,327,196        

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 1,724,033       309,889     (46,042)       1,987,880        

Total capital assets depreciated 8,051,229       309,889     (46,042)       8,315,076        

Less accumulated depreciation

Buildings and improvements 1,511,731       114,646     -                 1,626,377        

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 1,252,068       153,156     (44,985)       1,360,239        

Total accumulated depreciation 2,763,799       267,802     (44,985)       2,986,616        

Capital assets, net 5,644,015$     42,087$     (1,057)$       5,685,045$      

Sports Authority

Primary Government

 

Depreciation expense charged to the Sports Authority operations for capital assets of the 
primary government was $267,802 for the year ended September 30, 2013. 

 
NOTE F - UNAMORTIZED LEASEHOLD INTEREST 

 
As previously mentioned in note A, the ownership of Raymond James Stadium was 
transferred to Hillsborough County in December 2003 and then simultaneously leased back 
by the Sports Authority for a lease term expiring in January 2028. The costs of additions and 
improvements to the leasehold property are recorded at cost as increases in the value of the 
leasehold interest. This leasehold interest is being amortized using the straight-line method 
over the estimated useful life of 4 to 25 years for additions or the remaining lease term, 
whichever is shorter. 
 

Also, as previously mentioned in note A, the ownership of the Tampa Bay Times Forum was 
transferred to Hillsborough County in December 2004 and simultaneously leased back by 
the Sports Authority for a lease term expiring in June 2027. The transferred cost for the land 
and building was $92,258,364 and a reduction of accumulated depreciation of $12,475,408 
was applied, leaving a net book value to the leasehold interest of $79,782,956. Starting in 
January 2005, this leasehold interest is being amortized on a straight-line basis over the 
22.5 year life of the lease.  
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NOTE F - UNAMORTIZED LEASEHOLD INTEREST – Continued  
 

Leasehold Interest

Balance Balance

September 30, September 30,

2012 Additions Dispositions 2013

Leasehold interest

Raymond James Stadium 172,657,087$ 535,878$       (63,216)$      173,129,749$ 

Tampa Bay Times Forum 79,782,956     -                   -                 79,782,956     

252,440,043   535,878        (63,216)       252,912,705   

Less accumulated depreciation

Raymond James Stadium 64,490,556     7,983,532      (16,701)       72,457,387     

Tampa Bay Times Forum 27,480,795     3,545,909      -                 31,026,704     

91,971,351     11,529,441    (16,701)       103,484,091   

Leasehold interest, net 160,468,692$ (10,993,563)$ (46,515)$      149,428,614$ 

Sports Authority

 
 
 

Amortization expense for the year ended September 30, 2013 was $11,529,441. 
 
 

 NOTE G - LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
The following is the long-term debt activity related to the bonds and loans payable for the 
year ended September 30, 2013: 
 
 

Balance at Balance at

September 30, September 30, Due within

2012 Additions Deductions 2013 one year

Sports Authority 145,322,337$ -$            6,984,920$  138,337,417$  7,334,920$  
 

 
 
Bonds payable by the Sports Authority at September 30, 2013 consist of the following: 
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NOTE G - LONG-TERM DEBT – Continued 
 

Due within 

one year Long-term Total

$28,790,000, 1995 Special Purpose Bonds,

State of Florida Sales Tax Payments Series,

due in semi-annual installments through

2025; interest at 3.65% to 4.75% (Arena

Project) 995,000$      16,610,000$     17,605,000$    

$10,300,000, 1995 Special Purpose Bonds,

City of Tampa, Florida, guaranteed Parking

Revenue Series, due in semi-annual

installments through 2026; interest at 3.95%

to 6.10% (Arena Project) 335,000        6,450,000        6,785,000       

$2,815,000, Taxable 1995 Special Purpose

Bonds, City of Tampa, Florida, Surcharge

Loan Revenue Series, due in semi-annual

installments through 2026; interest at 7.14%

(Arena Project) 85,000          1,955,000        2,040,000       

$114,865,000, Local Option Sales Tax

Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2005, due

in semi-annual installments through 2027;

interest at 3.25% to 5.00% (Stadium

Project) 4,515,000     83,925,000      88,440,000     

$27,015,000, Florida Sales Tax Payments

Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2005, due

in semi-annual installments through 2027;

interest at 3.38% to 5.00% (Stadium Project) 1,135,000     19,070,000      20,205,000     

               Total principal 7,065,000     128,010,000     135,075,000    

Less, unamortized bond discount (14,403)         (158,751)          (173,154)         

Plus, unamortized bond premium 284,323        3,151,248        3,435,571       

                TOTAL 7,334,920$    131,002,497$   138,337,417$  
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NOTE G - LONG-TERM DEBT – Continued 
 
Debt maturities and related interest payments at September 30, 2013 for the Sports 
Authority consist of the following: 
 

Year ending

September 30, Principal Interest Total

2014 7,065,000$      6,735,709$   13,800,709$    

2015 7,430,000        6,364,293     13,794,293      

2016 7,810,000        5,982,773     13,792,773      

2017 8,210,000        5,580,762     13,790,762      

2018 8,625,000        5,056,841     13,681,841      

2019 - 2023 50,195,000      18,593,482   68,788,482      

2024 - 2027 45,740,000      4,673,068     50,413,068      

Total 135,075,000$  52,986,928$ 188,061,928$  
 

 

NOTE H - DEFEASANCE OF DEBT 
 

In previous years, the Sports Authority defeased certain bonds by placing a portion of the 
proceeds of new bonds in trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the old 
bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and liabilities for the defeased bonds are not 
included in the Sports Authority’s financial statements.  
 
The outstanding principal balances due on bond issues defeased as of September 30, 2013 
are as follows: 
 

$27,685,000 Interlocal Agreement Bonds of 1995 18,160,000$     

$11,190,000 Tourist Development Tax, Series 1997B 7,280,000         

$30,185,000 Special Purpose Hillsborough County 

Refunding Bonds Series 1998 21,290,000       

46,730,000$     
 

NOTE I - OPERATING LEASES 
 

In the normal course of business, the Sports Authority acting as a management agent, 
enters into lease agreements on behalf of the Golf Course Operations for equipment. These 
lease agreements are the responsibility of the Golf Course Operations, and no liability, or 
assets are recorded on the books of the Sports Authority for such leases. 

 

The Sports Authority subleases the Tampa Bay Times Forum to the Tampa Bay Arena, LTD 
(formerly known as the Tampa Bay Arena, LLP) under a non-cancelable operating 
agreement for an original term of 22.5 years. This agreement expires in June 2027, with the 
option for two 5-year renewal periods. Annual rent of $12,000 is due on January 1st each 
year of the agreement (see note A3). 
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NOTE J - GOLF COURSE MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES 

 
The Sports Authority and the City entered into an agreement on February 28, 1993, 
stipulating the terms and conditions for the Sports Authority to manage three City-owned 
Golf Courses (the “Golf Course Management Agreement”) which has been amended seven 
times.  

 
Under the terms of the amended agreement dated February 2000, the Sports Authority is to 
receive, within 45 days after its fiscal year end, one percent of the Golf Courses’ gross 
revenue, as defined, as a management fee to be paid only from the Golf Courses’ surplus 
revenues, defined as net revenues less any debt service installment then due. These 
management fees have been waived for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013. 

 
Under the terms of the amended agreement dated June 2004, the City shall be responsible 
for any operating shortfalls realized by the Golf Courses. An operating shortfall exists only 
when operating and maintenance expenses, excluding depreciation and any amortization 
costs approved by the City, exceeds gross revenue realized from the operations of the Golf 
Courses. 

 
NOTE K - PENSION PLANS AND COMPENSATED ABSENCES 
 

Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

 
Substantially all full-time employees of the Sports Authority and the Golf Course Operations 
are participants in the Florida Retirement System (the “System”), a multiple-employer, cost-
sharing public  retirement  system. The System,  which is controlled  by the State  
Legislature and administered by the State of Florida, Department of Administration, Division 
of Retirement, covers approximately 640,000 active members of various governmental units 
within the State of Florida (the “State”). The System provides for vesting benefits after six 
years of creditable service for employees hired prior to July 1, 2011 and with eight years of 
creditable service for employees hired on or after July 1, 2011. Normal retirement benefits 
are available to employees who retire at or after 62 years of age with six or more years of 
service for those employees hired before July 1, 2011; and at age 65 and eight years or 
more of service for those employees hired on or after July 1, 2011. Early retirement is 
available after six years of service with a 5% reduction of benefits for each year prior to the 
normal retirement age. Retirement benefits are based on age, average compensation and 
years-of-service credit where the average compensation is computed as the average of an 
individual’s five highest years of earnings. Employees are required to contribute 3% of gross 
compensation to this retirement system. 

 
The Sports Authority has no responsibility to the System other than to make the periodic 
payments required by the State Statutes. The Florida Division of Retirement issues              
a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and                   
required supplementary information for the System. The report may be obtained by writing to 
Florida Division of Retirement, 1317 Winewood Boulevard, Building 8, Tallahassee, Florida 
32399-1560. 
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NOTE K - PENSION PLANS AND COMPENSATED ABSENCES – Continued 

 
The Florida Legislature established a Deferred Retirement Option Program (“DROP”) 
effective July 1, 1998. This program allows eligible employees to defer receipt of monthly 
retirement benefit payments while continuing employment with a System employer for a 
period not to exceed 60 months after electing to participate. Deferred monthly benefits are 
held in the Florida Retirement System Trust Fund and accrue interest. 

 
Defined Contribution Plan 

 
The System offered a second retirement plan option beginning December 1, 2002, the FRS 
Investment Plan. Under this plan, the employer and employee pays all contributions, which 
are a percentage of salary based on the System’s Membership Class. The employee makes 
investment elections within the investment funds chosen by the State Board of 
Administration. The retirement benefit is based on the account balance, and the benefit        
is vested after one year of service. If an employee leaves the job, he or she can keep         
the benefit in the System, or transfer his or her account to another retirement plan. The 
employee can also elect to cash out of the benefit when leaving but is subject to tax 
penalties for taking early withdrawal. The employee in this plan is not eligible for DROP. All 
employees in the System’s defined benefit pension plan were given a choice of switching to 
the FRS Investment Plan within a designated time period. 

 
Contributions to Florida Retirement System 

 
For the System’s fiscal year commencing July 1, 2013, participating employer contributions 
are based upon statewide rates established by the State. These rates are applied to 
employee salaries as follow: regular employees at 6.95%, senior management at 18.31%, 
and DROP at 12.84%. As of July 1, 2011, participating employees, except DROP members 
are required to contribute 3% of their gross compensation towards their retirement benefit. 
The Sports Authority’s contributions during the years ended September 30, 2013, 2012 and 
2011 were $138,048, $97,855 and $158,097 respectively, equal to the required contributions 
for each year. 

 
Compensated Absences 

 
The Sports Authority provides for compensated absences through an employee benefit plan. 
Under the plan, employees are provided absences for sick and vacation time. Approximate 
amounts owed under the plan were $235,000 and $260,000 at September 30, 2013 and 
2012, respectively. These amounts are recorded as accrued liabilities in the Statement of 
Net Position. 
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NOTE L - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)  
   

The Sports Authority participates in the postemployment benefit plan administered by 
Hillsborough County, Florida (the “County”). Information related to the County OPEB plan 
follows: 
 
In accordance with GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by 
Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pension, the County expenses the cost of 
postemployment benefits over the active service lives of their employees rather than using a 
“pay-as-you-go” basis. Expensing the cost of a future benefit over the active work-lives of 
employees is a fiscally sound approach because employees actually earn the future benefits 
over their working careers.  

 
OPEB Plan Description.  The County provides the following health-related benefits to retirees 
and certain other employees: (a) The County is required by Florida Statute 112.0801 to allow 
retirees and certain former employees to buy healthcare coverage at the same “group 
insurance rates” that current employees are charged. Although retirees pay for healthcare at 
group rates, they are receiving a valuable benefit because they can buy insurance at costs that 
are lower than the costs associated with the experience rating for their age bracket. The 
availability of this lower cost health insurance represents an “implicit subsidy” for retirees. (b) 
The County offers a monthly stipend of $5 for each year of service up to a maximum benefit of 
$150 per month (the Sports Authority does not offer this option). The stipend is payable to 
regular retired employees from ages 62 to 65 and to special risk retired employees from ages 
55 to 65. The stipend is to be used to offset the cost of health insurance. Although the implicit 
subsidy is required by State law when healthcare is offered as an employee benefit, the stipend 
may be cancelled at any time. The OPEB plan is a single employer plan and does not issue a 
stand-alone financial report. The plan’s financial activity is included in the financial activity of the 
County.  

 
Annual OPEB cost and net OPEB Obligation.   The actuary’s estimate of the County's accrued 
OPEB liability, also known as the actuarial accrued liability, which approximates the present 
value of all future expected postemployment medical premiums, associated administrative 
costs and stipend payments (which are attributable to the past service of active and          
retired employees) was $79.965 million at September 30, 2013.  The County’s annual OPEB 
cost, which is defined as the OPEB expenses on an accrual basis, was $6.047 million               
at September 30, 2013. The annual OPEB cost is calculated based on the annual          
required contribution (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with GASB 
Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is 
projected to cover normal cost (current and future benefits earned) each year and to amortize 
any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period of time not to exceed thirty years. The County's 
estimated ARC for fiscal year 2013 was $5.969 million. The net OPEB obligation, at the end of 
the year, is the net amount the County was obligated for at year-end and is equivalent to the 
annual OPEB cost for the fiscal year, plus the net OPEB obligation at the start of the fiscal year, 
less contributions such as retiree claims and stipends paid by the County during the fiscal year. 
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NOTE L - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) – Continued 
 

The inter-relationships between the ARC, annual OPEB cost, and net OPEB obligation are 
presented in the following chart: 

Fiscal Year

2013

Actuarially required contribution (ARC) 5,969,000$   

Interest on the Net OPEB obligation for fiscal year 523,000        

Less amortization of Net OPEB obligation for fiscal year (445,000)       

Annual OPEB cost for fiscal year 6,047,000     

Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year 11,679,000   

Less contributions (claims paid, etc.) for fiscal year (5,266,000)    

Net OPEB obligation, end of year 12,460,000$ 
 

 
The County’s net OPEB obligation at September 30, 2013 was $12.460 million. The net OPEB 
obligation increased from the prior year primarily due to increased health care costs for retirees, 
as well as interest imputed on the net OPEB obligation since the County did not “fund” its 
OPEB liabilities (see next paragraph). 
 

 

Fiscal Annual Percentage of Annual Net   

Year OPEB Cost OPEB Cost Contributed OPEB Obligation

2011 5,973,000$  70% 8,920,000$       

2012 6,229,000$  56% 11,679,000$     

2013 1,047,000$  87% 12,460,000$      
 

Funding Policy, Status and Progress.  In order for OPEB obligations to be considered under 
GASB Statement No. 45, an irrevocable trust fund must be used. Since that would be 
considered very restrictive, the County did not “fund” the net OPEB obligation, but instead 
chose to appropriate and set aside an amount approximating the net OPEB obligation in the 
Self-Insurance Internal Services Fund. Each fund was assessed its share of OPEB costs 
based on an allocation using the number of employees in the fund divided by the total 
number of County employees. Assessments were then placed in the Self-Insurance Internal 
Service Fund. 
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NOTE L - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) – Continued  
 

Even though money was set aside to almost offset the net OPEB obligation, the County is 
not considered to have funded the obligation since an irrevocable trust fund was not used.  It 
is the County’s intent for future years to continue setting aside an amount equivalent to the 
annual OPEB cost, however, the County has no legal or contractual obligation to do so.   
 
The status of the plan as of September 30, 2013 was as follows: 
 
 

Actuarial valuations date September 30, 2013

Actuarial value of plan assets* -$                             

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) 79,965,000$            

Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) 79,965,000$            

Actuarial value of plan assets*/AAL (funded ratio) 0%

Covered payroll (active plan members) 507,657$                 

UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll* 15.8%  
 
*Although $14.891 million have been set aside in the Self-Insurance Internal Service        
Fund to more than offset the County’s net OPEB obligation of $12.460 million at September 
30, 2013, the amount considered to be funded was zero since an irrevocable trust fund was 
not established. 

 
The calculation of these actuarial estimates is based on a number of estimates and 
assumptions, including interest rates on investments, the healthcare cost trend, future 
employment and average retirement age, life expectancy, and healthcare costs per employee, 
many of which factors are subject to future economic and demographic variations. Amounts 
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the 
employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past 
expectations and new estimates are made about the future.  

 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions.  Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes 
are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and plan members) 
and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical 
pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point.  
 
The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce 
short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent 
with the long-term perspective of the calculations.  

 
The entry age actuarial cost method was used in the September 30, 2013 actuarial valuation. 
Other actuarial assumptions included a 4.5% investment rate of return a 4.5% discount rate, a 
2.5% inflation rate, an initial pre-Medicare annual healthcare cost trend rate of 9.5% grading to 
an ultimate rate of 5% for fiscal year 2018, and an initial post-Medicare annual healthcare cost 
trend rate of 7.0% grading to an ultimate rate of 5.5%  for fiscal year 2015. 
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NOTE L - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) – Continued 
 
In the September 30, 2011 actuarial report, the approximate average age of employees was 
reported to be 47, with 13 years of service completed and 12 years of additional service 
estimated. The actuarial value of the County’s assets was determined using the fair value of 
cash and investments at September 30, 2013. The County’s unfunded actuarial accrued 
liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on a closed basis. The 
amortization period used by the County at September 30, 2013, was 30 years. 
 

The Sports Authority’s share of the other post-employment benefits liability for the year ended 
September 30, 2013 is approximately $5,000. 

 

NOTE M - REVENUE SHARING AND TICKET SURCHARGE REVENUE 
 

Under an agreement between the Sports Authority and Buccaneers Stadium Limited 
Partnership (the “Buccaneers”) amended on September 17, 1996, the Sports Authority and 
the Buccaneers have agreed to share revenues as follow: 

 

Buccaneers events - 100% of revenues to go to the Buccaneers 

Non-Buccaneer events - First $2,000,000 to go to the Buccaneers; 50% of 
excess revenues to go to the Buccaneers; and 
50% of excess revenues to the Sports Authority 

 

The accompanying financial statements report revenues from concessions and parking after 
the Buccaneer split.  
 
The Buccaneers’ share of revenues from non-Buccaneer events during the year ended 
September 30, 2013 was $2,799,962. Per the agreement, the period used to determine the 
shared revenue for non-Buccaneer events is February 1 through January 31 of the following 
year. The Sports Authority recognized revenues of $690,237 during the year ended 
September 30, 2013, based on the activity from February 1, 2012 through January 31, 2013.  
No amounts have been accrued in the financial statements for the Sports Authority’s share 
of revenue earned from February 1, 2012 through September 30, 2013. 

 

Additionally, under the agreement between the Sports Authority and the Buccaneers, a 
ticket surcharge is to be added to all admission tickets for events held within Raymond 
James Stadium.  The Sports Authority may use the first $1,930,000 of surcharge revenue 
collected each agreement period (February 1 through January 31 of the following year) to 
fund operations.  All surcharge revenue amounts collected in excess at $1,930,000 are 
restricted by the agreement to either fund future years’ surcharge collection shortfalls 
(excess surcharge fund) or capital improvements.  In any agreement period, whereby actual 
surcharge revenue collections are below $1,930,000, the Sports Authority may draw funds 
from excess surcharge fund to bring total surcharge revenue to $1,930,000 for the 
agreement period.   
 

For the year ended September 30, 2013, $7,968 was released from the excess surcharge 
fund due to actual surcharge collection shortfalls.  The balance in the excess surcharge fund 
was $312,805 at September 30, 2013. 
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NOTE N - ECONOMIC CONCENTRATIONS AND SOURCES OF CERTAIN REVENUES 
 

The Sports Authority relies on interlocal cooperation agreements and revenues for its debt 
service requirements. The payment sources, among them state sales taxes, locally 
assessed tourist development taxes and community improvement taxes, were irrevocably 
pledged by the appropriate governmental entity (the State, County or City) to the Sports 
Authority’s bonds when they were issued; all of the bond issues are limited recourse 
obligations payable solely from the pledged tax revenues and from no other source. These 
revenues represent approximately $14,177,000 of the Sports Authority’s non-operating 
revenues. 

 

The Sports Authority also receives an annual payment from the Buccaneers Stadium Limited 
Partnership of $3.5 million as a guaranteed payment, $1,930,000 guaranteed as ticket 
surcharges and, as applicable, 50% of the revenue in excess of $2,000,000 realized from 
non-Buccaneer events held at the Stadium, including license fees and revenue from 
concessions, parking, programs and merchandise. 

 

NOTE O - RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

The Sports Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage      
to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural 
disasters for which commercial insurance is purchased. During the year ended      
September 30, 2013, insurance coverage was not reduced from coverage levels in place as 
of September 30, 2012. No settlements have exceeded coverage levels in place during the 
past three fiscal years. 

 

NOTE P - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 

The Sports Authority maintains an obligation at September 30, 2013 that originated from the 
$148,945,000 Tampa Sports Authority Local Option Sales Tax Revenue Bonds (Stadium 
Project), Series 1997, to fund the construction costs of a practice facility. The outstanding 
obligation totals $11,663,542 at September 30, 2012, and is shown as a component of 
restricted net assets on the Statement of Net Assets. 

 

The Sports Authority was involved in several legal actions and disputes at September 30, 
2013. No actions exist which, in management’s opinion, would have a material effect on the 
Sports Authority’s financial position. 
 

NOTE Q - DEFERRED COSTS OF ADVANCE REFUNDING 
 

Two issues of refunding bonds were sold by the Sports Authority on October 26, 2005.  The 
bond issues were the $114,865,000 Tampa Sports Authority Local Option Sales Tax 
Refunding Revenue Bonds (Stadium Project), Series 2005 (the “LOST Bonds”) and the 
$27,015,000 Tampa Sports Authority Florida Sales Tax Payments Refunding Revenue 
Bonds (Stadium Project), Series 2005 (the “FST Bonds”).  The proceeds of the LOST Bonds 
were used to (a) advance refund the $148,945,000 Tampa Sports Authority Local Option 
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds (Stadium Project), Series 1997 (b) Fund the LOST Bonds 
Account in the Reserve Fund in the amount of the Reserve Requirement for the LOST 
Bonds, and (c) pay the costs of issuance of the LOST Bonds.   
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NOTE Q - DEFERRED COSTS OF ADVANCE REFUNDING – Continued  
 
The proceeds of the FST Bonds were used to (a) advance refund the $30,010,000 Tampa 
Sports Authority Florida Sales Tax Payments Revenue Bonds (Stadium Project), Series 
1997, (b) fund the FST Bonds Account in the Reserve Fund in the amount of the Reserve 
Requirement for the FST Bonds, and (c) pay the costs of issuance of the FST Bonds. As a 
result of this debt refinancing, deferred costs related to the advance refunding of the 
Stadium Project bonds of approximately $5.8 million were recognized in October 2005.   
 
These deferred costs are being amortized through 2027.  The unamortized deferred costs at 
September 30, 2013 are $3,637,966 and the Sports Authority recognized approximately 
$273,000 of amortization expense related to these deferred costs in 2013.  The present 
value savings of gross debt service associated with the 2005 Series bonds approximates 
$6.7 million over the life of the bonds. 

 
NOTE R - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 

The Sports Authority has evaluated events and transactions occurring subsequent               
to September 30, 2013 as of February 24, 2014 which is the date the financial statements 
were available to be issued.   
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Tampa Sports Authority 
 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
 

For the year ended September 30, 2013 
 

State 

CSFA 

Number

Pass-

Through 

Entity 

Identifying 

Number Expenditures

State Agency

Florida Department of Revenue

Franchise

$27,015,000 Tampa Sports Authority Florida

Florida Sales Tax Payments Refunding

Revenue Bonds (Stadium Project), Series 2005 73.016 N/A 1,994,053$    

Franchise

$28,790,000 Tampa Sports Authority 1995 Special

Purpose Bonds, State of Florida Sales Tax

 73.016 N/A 1,998,257      

Total expenditures of state financial assistance 3,992,310$    

State Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/Program Title

Professional Sports, or Retained Spring Training 

Facilities for New Professional Sports, Retained 

Facilities for New Professional Sports, Retained 

Professional Sports, or Retained Spring Training 
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Tampa Sports Authority 
 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF 
STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

 
September 30, 2013 

 
NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

 
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance includes the 
State grant activity of the Sports Authority and is presented on the accrual basis of 
accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the 
requirements of Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Florida Auditor General. Therefore, some 
amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the 
preparation of the basic financial statements. 
 

NOTE B - CONTINGENCIES 
 
These State programs are subject to financial and compliance audits by grantor agencies, 
which, if instances of material noncompliance are found, may result in disallowed 
expenditures, and affect the Sports Authority’s continued participation in specific programs. 
The amount of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor agencies cannot be 
determined at this time, although the Sports Authority expects such amounts, if any, to be 
immaterial. 
 

NOTE C - SUBRECIPIENTS 
 
The Sports Authority did not provide State financial assistance to subrecipients. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN 
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 

WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 

TAMPA SPORTS AUTHORITY 
 

September 30, 2013 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND 
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
 
Board of Directors 
Tampa Sports Authority 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the statement of   
net position and the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position    
and cash flows of the Tampa Sports Authority as of and for the year ended September 30, 
2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Tampa 
Sports Authority’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
February 24, 2014. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Tampa Sports 
Authority’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion 
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Tampa Sports Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Tampa Sports Authority’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Tampa Sports Authority’s financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with 
which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement 
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our 
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported 
under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 
 
 
 
Tampa, Florida 
February 24, 2014 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR  
EACH MAJOR STATE PROJECT AND ON INTERNAL  

CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY  
CHAPTER 10.550, RULES OF THE FLORIDA AUDITOR GENERAL 

 
TAMPA SPORTS AUTHORITY 

 
September 30, 2013 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR 

EACH MAJOR STATE PROJECT AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL  
OVER  COMPLIANCE  REQUIRED  BY CHAPTER 10.550,  
RULES OF THE FLORIDA AUDITOR GENERAL 

 
 
Board of Directors 
Tampa Sports Authority 
 

Report on Compliance for Major State Project 
 
We have audited Tampa Sports Authority’s compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the Florida Department of Financial Services’ State Projects 
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on the Tampa Sports 
Authority’s major State project for the year ended September 30, 2013. The Tampa Sports 
Authority’s major State project is identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 
 
Management’s Responsibility 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grants applicable to its State project. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for the Tampa Sports Authority’s 
major State project based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained 
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 
Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Florida Auditor General. Those standards and Chapter 10.550 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a 
direct and material effect on a major State project occurred. An audit includes examining, on a 
test basis, evidence about Tampa Sports Authority’s compliance with those requirements and 
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the 
major State project. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Tampa Sports 
Authority’s compliance. 
 
Opinion on Major State Project 
 
In our opinion, Tampa Sports Authority complied, in all material respects, with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its 
major State project for the year ended September 30, 2013. 
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
Management of the Tampa Sports Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Tampa Sports 
Authority’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a 
direct and material effect on the major State project to determine the auditing procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for 
the major State project and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance 
with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Florida Auditor General but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Tampa Sports Authority’s internal control over 
compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a State project on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type 
of compliance requirement of a State project will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, 
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a State project that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control 
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements 
of Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Florida Auditor General. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for 
any other purpose.  
 
 
 
 
Tampa, Florida 
February 24, 2014 
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS -  
STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROJECT 

 
TAMPA SPORTS AUTHORITY 

 
September 30, 2013 
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Tampa Sports Authority 
 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS -  
STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROJECT 

 
September 30, 2013 

 

Section I - Summary of Auditors' Results

Type of auditors' report issued

Internal control over financial reporting

Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no

Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X none reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X no

Internal control over major state projects

Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no

Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X none reported

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for 

major state projects

Any audit findings disclosed that are to be reported in 

accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the

Auditor General? yes X no

Identification of major state project:

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A

and type B state projects 300,000$       

73.016 Facilities for New Professional 

Sports, Retained Professional 

Sports, or Retained Spring 

Training Franchise

               Financial Statements

State Financial Assistance

State:                 CFSA Number Name of State Project

Unmodified

Unmodified 
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Tampa Sports Authority 
 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - 
STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROJECT - CONTINUED 

 
September 30, 2013 

 

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

Section III - State Financial Assistance Project Findings and Questioned Costs

No matters were reported for the year ended September 30, 2013 and there were no prior 

year audit findings to be reported. Accordingly, a summary of prior year audit findings is 

not presented.

No matters were reported for the year ended September 30, 2013 and there were no prior 

year audit findings to be reported. Accordingly, a summary of prior year audit findings is 

not presented.
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MANAGEMENT LETTER BASED ON RULE 10.554(1)(i)  

OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA 
 

TAMPA SPORTS AUTHORITY 
 

September 30, 2013 
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MANAGEMENT LETTER BASED ON RULE 10.554(1)(i) OF THE 

AUDITOR GENERAL OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA 
 
 

Honorable Board of Directors 
Tampa Sports Authority, Florida 

 

We have audited the financial statements of Tampa Sports Authority as of and for the fiscal 
year ended September 30, 2013, and have issued our report thereon, dated February 24, 
2014. 

 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and Chapter 
10.550, Rules of the Florida Auditor General.  We have issued our Independent Auditor’s 
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters 
Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Governmental 
Auditing Standards, Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major State Project 
and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Florida 
Auditor General, and Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.  Disclosures in those reports 
and schedule, which are dated February 24, 2014, should be considered in conjunction with this 
management letter. 

 

Additionally, our audit was conducted in accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Florida 
Auditor General, which governs the conduct of local governmental entity audits performed in the 
State of Florida. This letter includes the following information, which is not included in the 
aforementioned auditors’ reports or schedule: 

 

Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Florida Auditor General, requires that we determine whether 
or not corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in 
the preceding annual financial audit report.  There are no findings and recommendations 
disclosed in the preceding audit report. 

 

Section 10.554(1)(i)2., Rules of the Florida Auditor General, requires our audit to include a 
review of the provisions of Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, regarding the investment of public 
funds.  In connection with our audit, we determined that the Tampa Sports Authority complied 
with Section 218.415, Florida Statutes. 

 

Section 10.554(1)(i)3., Rules of the Florida Auditor General, requires that we address in the 
management letter any recommendations to improve financial management.  In connection with 
our audit, we did not have any such recommendations. 
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Section 10.554(1)(i)4., Rules of the Florida Auditor General, requires that we address  
provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to have 
occurred, that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but which 
warrants the attention of the charged with governance.  In connection with our audit, we did not 
have any such findings. 
 
Section 10.554(1)(i)5., Rules of the Florida Auditor General, requires that the name or official 
title and legal authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting 
entity be disclosed in this management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial 
statements.  This information is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 

 
Section 10.554(1)(i)6.a., Rules of the Florida Auditor General, requires a statement be included 
as to whether or not the local governmental entity has met one or more of the conditions 
described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and identification of the specific condition(s) 
met.  In connection with our audit, we determined that the Tampa Sports Authority did not meet 
any of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes. 

 
Section 10.554(1)(i)6.b., Rules of the Florida Auditor General, requires that we determine 
whether the annual financial report for the Tampa Sports Authority for the fiscal year ended    
September 30, 2013, filed with the Florida Department of Financial Services pursuant to Section 
218.32(1)(a), Florida Statutes, is in agreement with the annual financial audit report for the fiscal 
year ended September 30, 2013.  In connection with our audit, we determined that these two 
reports were in agreement. 

 
Pursuant to Section 10.554(1)(i)6.c., and 10.556(7), Rules of the Florida Auditor General, we 
applied financial condition assessment procedures.  It is management’s responsibility to monitor 
the Tampa Sports Authority’s financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was 
based in part on representations made by management and the review of financial information 
provided by same. 
 
Section 10.554(1)(i)6.e, Rules of the Auditor General, requires a statement be included as to 
whether or not the local governmental entity complied with State and Federal laws, rules, 
regulations, contracts, or grant agreements governing the receipt and expenditure of those 
funds.  Funds related to the Deepwater Horizon oil spill may include, but are not limited to, funds 
received pursuant to Section 288.84, Florida Statutes, and Public Law 112-141 (33 U.S.C.A. 
ss.1321(t)); State or local grants; and moneys received directly from British Petroleum. The 
Authority did not receive any funding related to the Deepwater Horizon Oil Spill. 

 
Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing 
Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the 
Florida Auditor General, other granting agencies, and applicable management, and is not 
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

 
 
 
 
 

Tampa, Florida 
February 24, 2014 
 




